
City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2019 

Page 1 of 3 

City of Belton, Texas 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, December 10, 2019 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room, Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Craig Pearson. 

Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Parks and Recreation Matt Bates. 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Dr. Claudette Morgan-Scott, Pastor of Shiloh 
Worship Center. 

1. Call to order.

2. Public Comments.

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to 
do so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located 
on the table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please 
state your name and address for the record, and limit your comments to 
three minutes. Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates 
hearing your comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits 
them from: (1) engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of 
specific factual information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking 
action other than directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 

3. Receive Child Safety Fee funds in the amount of $23,014.65 from Bell County.

4. Recognize the Finance Department for receipt of the Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting for Fiscal Year 2018.



City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2019 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 5-9 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
5. Consider minutes of November 26, 2019, City Council Meeting. 

 
6. Consider authorizing an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Temple for the use of a 

Temple fire engine until Belton’s fire engine is back in service. 
 

7. Consider a resolution granting the City Manager, Director of Finance, Assistant 
Director of Finance and designated deputy the authority to conduct financial 
transactions on behalf of the City of Belton. 

 
8. Consider authorizing the purchase of the following: 
 

A. Asphalt recycler for the Streets Department from Crafco through the HGACBuy 
purchasing cooperative. 
 

B. SCBA Air Packs and accessory equipment for the Fire Department from Casco 
through the BuyBoard purchasing cooperative. 

 
9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with 

Bell County Municipal Utility District No. 1 to provide solid waste collection services. 
 
Planning and Zoning 

 
10. Consider a final plat of The Ridge at Belle Meadows Phase I, comprising 34.747 

acres, located on the south side of W. Avenue O, between S. Loop 121 and Connell 
Street. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
11. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for the East Street 

Sidewalk project in conjunction with the Belton Economic Development Corporation, 
and any change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount 
authorized under State law. 

  
12. Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance on first reading authorizing 

franchise agreements for commercial solid waste services with the following 
companies: 

 
A. Waste Connections 
B. Temple Iron & Metal 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2019 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

C. Sunbright Disposal Services 
D. Eagle Disposal 
E. Waste Management 
F. Red Box Plus 

 
13. Consider a response to Gated River One, LLC, regarding the City’s Right of First 

Refusal to purchase the northernmost 30 acres of the former Leon Valley Golf 
Course. 

  
Executive Session 
 
14. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance with the 
authority contained in Section 551.072, to discuss real estate transaction. 

 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2019 

Page 1 of 4 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, December 10, 2019 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room, Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Craig Pearson. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Director of 
Parks and Recreation Matt Bates. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Dr. Claudette Morgan-Scott, Pastor of Shiloh 
Worship Center. 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Public Comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to 
do so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located 
on the table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please 
state your name and address for the record, and limit your comments to 
three minutes. Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates 
hearing your comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits 
them from: (1) engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of 
specific factual information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking 
action other than directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 
 

3. Receive Child Safety Fee funds in the amount of $23,014.65 from Bell County. 
 

Section 502 of the Transportation Code provides that County Commissioners can 
collect an additional fee up to $1.50 for each vehicle registered in the County, and 
Bell County collects the full $1.50 amount. Bell County officials will make a 
presentation regarding Belton’s share of funding received from 10/1/2018 – 
9/30/2019, in the amount of $23,014.65 (prior year amount was $22,605.67). While 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2019 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 

some other area cities have decided to use these funds for other allowed purposes, 
the City of Belton has chosen to honor the legislative intent of these fees and direct 
them to the intended purpose of crossing guard programs to ensure the safety of 
school children. To that end, the City will remit these funds received from Bell 
County, as well as fees collected on City fines, to BISD to be used for its crossing 
guard program. 

 
4. Recognize the Finance Department for receipt of the Certificate of 

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for Fiscal Year 2018. 
 

For the 33rd consecutive year, the City of Belton’s Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) has received the Government Finance Officers Association 
Certificate of Achievement Award.  This award is for Financial Reporting for the 
fiscal year ending September 30, 2018. It is recognition of distinction and honor for 
the Belton City Council, management, and Staff that the City’s CAFR meets the 
national standards of excellence for reporting the City’s finances. Special thanks go 
to Assistant Director of Finance Susan Allamon and the rest of the team in the 
Finance Department. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 5-9 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and 
may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item 
may be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
5. Consider minutes of November 26, 2019, City Council Meeting. 

 
A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval. 

 
6. Consider authorizing an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Temple for the 

use of a Temple fire engine until Belton’s fire engine is back in service. 
 

See Staff Report from Interim Fire Chief Wesley Gilbreath. Recommend approval of 
the agreement as presented, with Belton’s appreciation to our neighbor. 

 
7. Consider a resolution granting the City Manager, Director of Finance, 

Assistant Director of Finance and designated deputy the authority to conduct 
financial transactions on behalf of the City of Belton. 

 
See Staff Report from Assistant Director of Finance Susan Allamon. Recommend 
adoption of the resolution as presented. 

 
 
 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2019 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 

8. Consider authorizing the purchase of the following: 
 

A. An asphalt recycler for the Streets Department from Crafco through the 
HGACBuy purchasing cooperative. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Public Works Angellia Points. Recommend 
approval of the purchase of the asphalt recycler from Crafco. 

 
B. SCBA Air Packs and accessory equipment for the Fire Department from 

Casco through the BuyBoard purchasing cooperative. 
 

See Staff Report from Interim Fire Chief Wesley Gilbreath. Recommend approval 
of the purchase of the SCBA Air Packs and accessory equipment from Casco. 

 
9. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement 

with Bell County Municipal Utility District No. 1 to provide solid waste 
collection services. 
 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend approval of the 
Interlocal Agreement allowing MUD residents to utilize residential solid waste 
collection and recycling services provided for in the new franchise agreement with 
Waste Management effective January 1, 2020. 
 

Planning and Zoning 
 

10. Consider a final plat of The Ridge at Belle Meadows Phase I, comprising 
34.747 acres, located on the south side of W. Avenue O, between S. Loop 121 
and Connell Street. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell. At its meeting on 
November 19, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval 
of this final plat, and Staff concurs. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
11. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for the East 

Street Sidewalk project in conjunction with the Belton Economic Development 
Corporation, and any change orders associated with the contract, not to 
exceed the amount authorized under State law. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Public Works Angellia Points. Recommend 
approval of the contract with TTG. 
 

12. Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance on first reading authorizing 
franchise agreements for commercial solid waste services with the following 
companies: 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 10, 2019 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 
A. Waste Connections 
B. Temple Iron & Metal 
C. Sunbright Disposal Services 
D. Eagle Disposal 
E. Waste Management 
F. Red Box Plus 

 
See Staff Report from City Clerk Amy Casey. Recommend holding the public 
hearing and approving the franchise ordinances on first reading. Second and final 
reading will be held on January 14, 2020. 

 
13. Consider a response to Gated River One, LLC, regarding the City’s Right of 

First Refusal to purchase the northernmost 30 acres of the former Leon Valley 
Golf Course. 
 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend the City decline the 
offer to purchase as presented. 

 
Executive Session 
 
14. Executive Session pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act, 

Chapter 551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance with the 
authority contained in Section 551.072, to discuss real estate transaction. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 





Belton City Council Meeting 
November 26, 2019 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room at the Harris 
Community Center with the following members present: Mayor Marion Grayson, Mayor 
Pro Tem Wayne Carpenter and Councilmembers John R. Holmes, Sr., Craig Pearson, 
Guy O’Banion and Dan Kirkley. Councilmember David K. Leigh was absent. Staff 
present included Sam Listi, Gene Ellis, John Messer, Michelle Garcia, Susan Allamon, 
Charlotte Walker, Tina Moore, James Grant, Chris Brown, Angellia Points, Bob van Til 
and Kim Kroll. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Mayor Marion Grayson and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by Director of Library Services Kim 
Kroll. The Invocation was given by Bruce Lovesmith, Associate Pastor of Fellowship 
Baptist Church. 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Grayson called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 
2. Public Comments. (Audio 2:04)  
 

Kim Kroll, Director of Library Services, announced that the Lena Armstrong Public 
Library would host an Ornament Extravaganza on December 3 and 6, 2019, for 
different age groups. Both will be held at the Harris Community Center. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
3. Consider minutes of previous meetings: (Audio 3:20) 

 
A. November 12, 2019, City Council/Planning and Zoning Commission Joint 

Workshop Meeting; 
B. November 12, 2019, City Council Meeting.  

 
Upon a motion for approval by Mayor Pro Tem Carpenter, and a second by 
Councilmember Kirkley, the minutes were unanimously approved by a vote of 6-0. 

 
4. Hold a public hearing and consider a resolution supporting the City’s grant 

application to the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department for the development of 
Heritage Park at the Leon River. (Audio 3:45) 

 
Public Hearing: No one spoke for or against the item. 
 
Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Carpenter, and a second by Councilmember 
Pearson, the grant application, including the following captioned resolution, was 
unanimously approved by a vote of 6-0. 

 
 
 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 26, 2019 – Page 2 
 

  

RESOLUTION 2019-24-R 
 

A resolution of the City Council of the City of Belton as hereinafter referred to 
as “Applicant,” designating certain officials as being responsible for, acting 
for, and on behalf of the Applicant in dealing with the Texas Parks & Wildlife 
Department, hereinafter referred to as “Department,” for the purpose of 
participating in the Local Park Grant Program, hereinafter referred to as the 
“Program”; certifying that the Applicant is eligible to receive program 
assistance; certifying that the Applicant matching share is readily available; 
and dedicating the proposed site for permanent (or for the term of the lease 
for leased property) public park and recreational uses. 

 
Planning and Zoning 

 
5. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Office-2 District with 

a Specific Use Permit for a Bail Bonds Business to Retail Zoning District on 
property located at 609 E. 6th Avenue, on the north side of 6th Avenue, east of 
Waco Road. (Audio 7:45) 

 
Public Hearing: No one spoke for or against the item. 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Pearson, and a second by Councilmember 
Holmes, 609 E. 6th Avenue was rezoned to Retail Zoning District, and the following 
captioned ordinance was unanimously approved by a vote of 6-0. 

 
ORDINANCE 2019-57 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON BY CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM OFFICE-2 
DISTRICT WITH A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT FOR A BAIL BOND BUSINESS TO 
RETAIL DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 0.236 ACRE, WITH DEVELOPMENT 
TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 7 DESIGN STANDARDS. 

 
There being no further business, Mayor Grayson adjourned the meeting at 5:42 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________  
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #6 
 
Consider authorizing an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Temple for the use of a 
Temple fire engine until Belton’s fire engine is back in service. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Fire – Wesley Gilbreath, Interim Fire Chief 
 
Background Information 
 
On October 29th, 2019, one of our fire engines was involved in an accident on I-35. This 
accident severely damaged the engine and rendered it unusable. As a result, we do not 
have a reserve fire engine to use if one of our front-line apparatus requires maintenance or 
repairs. The engine to be loaned by Temple is a 1996 Spartan/Quality engine. The length of 
the loan is currently unknown as the repair of the Belton engine could take anywhere from 
three to seven months. The Temple City Council authorized the loan of the fire engine at 
their meeting on December 5, 2019.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the interlocal agreement. 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The City will be required to maintain insurance on the fire engine. Additionally, we will be 
responsible for any repairs that are above “normal wear and tear” so that the engine will be 
returned to Temple in the same condition in which it was received. 
 
Attachments 
 
Proposed Interlocal Agreement 



1 | P a g e  
 

 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF BELTON AND THE CITY OF TEMPLE 
FOR USE OF A DECOMISSIONED TEMPLE FIRE ENGINE 

 
This Interlocal Agreement is between the City of Belton (“Belton”), and the City of Temple 

(“Temple”) both Texas home rule municipalities, to allow Belton to utilize a decommissioned City of 
Temple fire engine.  Belton and Temple may hereinafter be referred to individually as the “Party” 
and/or collectively as the “Parties.” 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, Temple is proposing 

entering into an interlocal agreement with Belton to loan a decommissioned Temple fire engine to 
Belton to serve as a reserve engine in place of a Belton fire engine that was severely damaged and 
rendered unusable in an accident until such time as the Belton engine is repaired or replaced;  

 
WHEREAS, the engine to be loaned is Temple asset No. 10112, a 1996 Spartan/Quality engine 

which was retired from service in November 2019—Temple will postpone the sale of the engine until it 
is returned from Belton; 

 
WHEREAS, the loan of this engine will not cause a shortage of apparatus for the City of 

Temple or affect Temple operations and will assist Belton in providing necessary fire coverage until 
Belton’s damaged engine can be repaired or replaced; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement have considered this interlocal agreement, and deem 

it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Belton and Temple; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties mutually agree to the terms of this Interlocal Agreement as 

set forth below. 
 

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

A. PURPOSE.  This Agreement allows Belton to utilize a decommissioned 1996 Spartan/Quality 
engine, asset No. 10112, from the City of Temple as a reserve engine while its damaged fire 
engine is being repaired or replaced. 

B. TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  
a. Belton will maintain all necessary insurance on the loaned fire engine. Belton will be 

responsible for all damages incurred during the use or possession of the engine.  
b. Belton will be responsible for all maintenance of the fire engine during the loan period 

and will be responsible for any repairs to the fire engine beyond normal wear and tear. 
c. Belton will return the engine to Temple at the end of the loan period in like condition. 
d. Temple will postpone selling the decommissioned fire engine until the engine is returned 

to the City. 
C. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon signature of both Parties and 

approval by the governing bodies of the municipalities and will terminate when the engine is no 
longer needed by Belton.  

D. TERMINATION. Either Party may terminate this Agreement by providing the other with thirty 
(30) days written notice. 

E. COMPENSATION.  Belton is not required to reimburse Temple for use of the engine; 
however, Belton will be required to reimburse Temple for any repairs or maintenance necessary 



2 | P a g e  
 

to the engine beyond normal wear and tear if the engine is not returned in like repair. 
F. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Belton is required to comply with all applicable local, state, 

and federal laws. Failure to comply with all laws, regulations, policies, or usage requirements 
shall be treated as a default. 

 
II. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A. WAIVER.  No waiver of performance by either Party shall be construed as, or operate as, a 

waiver for any subsequent default of any terms, covenants, and/or conditions of this Agreement.  
B. ASSIGNMENT. Neither Party shall assign all or any part of its rights, privileges, or duties 

under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the governing bodies of the Parties.  
C. STATUS OF GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES.  The Parties shall in no way operate as an 

agent of the other Party. Each Party shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of their own 
officers, directors, authorized agents, servants and employees in connection with this agreement. 
Each Party shall at all times be and remain legally responsible for the conduct of their respective 
personnel.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as making either Party responsible for 
the payment of compensation and/or any benefits, including health, property, motor vehicle, or 
worker’s compensation, disability, death, or dismemberment insurance for the other Party’s 
employees and/or equipment.  

D. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. Neither Party to this Agreement waives any governmental 
or sovereign immunity entitled to them by law, whether statutory or at common law, by entering 
into this Interlocal Agreement.  Both Parties expressly retain all such immunities afforded them.  

E. VENUE. Should any action, whether real or asserted, at law or in equity, arise out of the 
execution, performance, attempted performance or non-performance of this agreement, venue for 
said action shall be in the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas or in the United States District 
Court for the Western District of Texas.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Texas.   

F. WRITTEN INSTRUMENT IS ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This written instrument constitutes 
the entire Agreement by the parties hereto concerning the work and services to be performed 
under this Agreement.  

G. MODIFICICATION. No alteration, change, modification or amendment of the scope of this 
Agreement will be valid or effective unless made by the mutual consent of the Parties, in 
writing, signed and dated by both Parties and approved by appropriate action of the governing 
body of each Party. 

H. PARAGRAPH HEADINGS. The paragraph headings contained herein are for convenience and 
are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Agreement.  

I. SEVERABILITY. In any case, if one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement, 
shall, for any reason, be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, 
illegality, or unenforceability, shall not affect any other provision thereof and this Agreement 
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been 
contained herein.  

 
III. NOTICE 

NOTICE. Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices required or permitted by this Agreement shall 
be made to the following: 
 
 
To the City of Temple: 
 



3 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF TEMPLE 
Fire Chief Mitch Randles 

210 North 3rd Street 
Temple, Texas 76501 

 
With Copy to: 
 

CITY OF TEMPLE 
City Attorney’s Office 

2 North Main Street, Suite 308 
Temple, Texas 76501 

 
To the City of Belton: 

 
CITY OF BELTON 

City Clerk Amy M. Casey 
P.O. Box 120 

Belton, Texas 76513 
 

IV. EXECUTION 
 
This Agreement shall be executed by the duly authorized official(s) of each Party as expressed in 

the approving resolution or order of the governing body of such Party. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date first written 

above. 
 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS               CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
 
 
               
Brynn Myers, City Manager          By: Sam Listi, City Manager 

 
ATTEST:      ATTEST:   
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary   Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
    
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
  
 
              
City Attorney’s Office    City Attorney’s Office  



City Council Agenda Item 
December 4, 2019 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #7 
 
Consider a resolution granting the City Manager, Director of Finance, Assistant Director of 
Finance and designated deputy the authority to conduct financial transactions on behalf of 
the City of Belton. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Assistant Director of Finance – Susan Allamon 
 
Background 

 
With the appointment of William (Michael) Rodgers to the Director of Finance position, we are 
recommending the addition of him to the list of authorized check signers for the City. The 
changes will be effective December 10, 2019. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the resolution. 
 
Attachments 
 
Proposed Resolution 



  RESOLUTION NO.  2019-25-R                
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, 
TEXAS, GRANTING THE CITY MANAGER, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, 
ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND DESIGNATED DEPUTY THE 
AUTHORITY TO CONDUCT FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS ON BEHALF 
OF THE CITY OF BELTON. 
 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to grant the City Manager, Director of 

Finance, Assistant Director of Finance and certain designated deputy named herein, the 
authority to conduct financial transactions on behalf of the City of Belton. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the individuals whose signatures appear in 

Part 1 below, on behalf of the City of Belton and as its own act, to sign checks, drafts, 
notes, bills of exchange, acceptances, or other orders for the payment of money; to 
endorse any checks, notes, bills, or other instruments owned, held, or endorsed to the 
City of Belton; to issue instructions regarding deposits, withdrawal, orders for payment or 
transfer of funds whether oral, by telephone, or electronic means; or to do any other 
convenient or necessary acts to the opening, maintenance, and closing of the accounts 
in accordance with the Charter and ordinances of the City of Belton.  

 
 
_______________________________  ________________________________ 
Sam Listi, City Manager    William Rodgers, Director of Finance 
 
 
_______________________________  ________________________________  
Susan Allamon, Assistant Director of Finance  Amy M. Casey, City Clerk   
  
 

Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the use of machine generated facsimile 
signatures on checks, vouchers, and warrants for withdrawal of money from City 
depositories.  Such facsimile signatures shall be applied only by the authorized individuals 
designated in Part 1. 
  

Part 3:  The authority herein shall remain in full force and effect until written notice 
revoking or modifying same has been given by the City Council and received by all other 
parties to this transaction. 
 
 Part 4:  The individuals named herein shall have a bond of not less than One 



Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) each, in accordance with Section 4.04 of the City 
Charter. 
 
 Part 5:  This Resolution shall take effect on December 10, 2019. 
 
 Part 6:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 10th day of December, 2019. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:        
 
 
___________________________     
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk      



City Council Agenda Item 
 December 10, 2019 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #8A 
 
Consider authorizing the purchase of an asphalt recycler for the Streets Department from 
Crafco through the HGACBuy purchasing cooperative. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Public Works – Angellia Points, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
Summary Information 
 
The proposed asphalt recycler is a new purchase and will be used for the asphalt repairs of 
potholes, street cuts, and utility patches. This purchase will allow Public Works to use 
recycled asphalt millings and not fully rely on the asphalt plant for our asphalt repairs. Staff 
researched the available models for asphalt recyclers and determined a KMT2 asphalt 
recycler will be ideal to meet Belton’s needs. 
 
Under Texas State Procurement Law, products that are quoted through BuyBoard, 
HGACBuy, or other cooperatives are not required to be bid, because they have already 
performed the bidding process. Quotes were pursued from multiple vendors, including 
Crafco, an HGACBuy vendor for the asphalt recycler. The asphalt recycler was quoted for 
$87,555 which is an HGACBuy quote and under the budgeted amount of $91,500.  
 
 
Fiscal Impact Amount: $87,555 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No   
 
Funding Source(s): Capital Pool Fund 
  
Recommendation 
 
Authorize the purchase of the asphalt recycler. 

 
Attachments 
Equipment Quote 







City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #8B 
 
Consider authorizing the purchase of SCBA Air Packs and accessory equipment for the Fire 
Department from Casco Industries through the BuyBoard purchasing cooperative. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Fire – Wesley Gilbreath, Interim Fire Chief 
 
Background Information 
 
The air packs currently in service are nearing the end of serviceability. There are currently 
eight air packs out of service due to parts no longer being produced and that are unable to 
be repaired. NFPA recommends replacing air packs at 15 years, the current air packs in 
service are almost 20 years old. The purchase will include air packs, bottles, masks, two 
rescue packs and an electronic accountability system integrated within the air packs. The 
accountability system will allow the Incident Commander to view each firefighter’s air 
pressure in real time and be notified in the event of a firefighter emergency. This is 
technology unavailable with our current air pack system. The packs come with a lifetime 
warranty and will reduce the cost of repairs over the lifespan of the pack.  

Under Texas State Procurement Law, products that are quoted through BuyBoard, 
HGACBuy, or other cooperatives are not required to be bid, because those entities have 
already performed the bidding process. Quotes were pursued from Casco Industries, a 
BuyBoard vendor and sole source, for the air packs.  
 
Fiscal Impact Amount: $110,538.40 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No   
 
Funding Source(s): Capital Pool Fund 
  
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the purchase of the SCBA air packs and accessory equipment. 

Attachments 
Quote 
Sole source letter 



607 W. 62nd Street (318) 865-5107 P.O. Box 8007

SOLD TO: SHIP TO:

ATTN: ATTN:

PHONE: PHONE:

EMAIL: EMAIL:

SALES REP SALES REP REF #

BUYBOARD #524-17 181
TERMS FREIGHT DATE FORM TYPE

30 ADD 12/5/2019 QUOTE

ITEM LOC DESCRIPTION QTY SHIPPED PRICE AMOUNT

1 MSA- G1FS-424MA2C6LCA, G1, , Extendaire II 14 5,500.00$        77,000.00$               

adj swiveling lumbar, pass w/telemetry, Alkeline -$                  -$                           

-$                  -$                           

2 MSA- 10158390, Dovetail bracket & gauge guard 18 57.00$              1,026.00$                 

45 min low profile cylinder for existing cylinders -$                  -$                           

-$                  -$                           

3 MSA-10156424, G1 cylinder LOPRO, remote connect, 14 850.00$            11,900.00$               

w/QC 4500/45 min- -$                  -$                           

-$                  -$                           

4 MSA-FM1M5C1, G1 face piece, medium w/medium 28 256.00$            7,168.00$                 

nose cup, push to connect -$                  -$                           

-$                  -$                           

5 MSA-10072240, base station KIT 2 1,800.00$        3,600.00$                 

-$                  -$                           

6 MSA-10158407, TAG/Reader Writer 1 450.00$            450.00$                    

-$                  -$                           

7 MSA-10083875, RFID TAGS 28 35.00$              980.00$                    

-$                  -$                           

8 MSA- 10169711,  G1 RIT system 2 3,037.20$        6,074.40$                 

-$                  -$                           

9 MSA- 10158385, charging station 2 450.00$            900.00$                    

-$                  -$                           

10 MSA- 10148741, spare battery pack, rechargeable 6 240.00$            1,440.00$                 

-$                  -$                           

 -$                           

 -$                  -$                           

-$                  -$                           

-$                  -$                           

-$                  -$                           

-$                  -$                           

-$                  -$                           

TOTAL: -$                

Subtotal 110,538.40$             

Tax -$                           

Freight -$                           

TOTAL 110,538.40$             

CUST PO NUMBER

TRANSACTION ID#

NAMEEXP DATE

NUMBER/CODE/ZIP

CREDIT CARD:

COST

110,538.40$                                       ADDITIONAL COMMENTS BELOW

Campbel Campbel

254-721-2676 254-721-2676

SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71148-8007

Belton Fire Dept

420 Sparta rd

Belton, Texas 76513

Belton Fire Dept

420 Sparta Rd

Belton, Texas 76513

"PROVIDING PROTECTING FOR THOSE WHO PROTECT US" Page 1



 

   

           
           
           
           
  
 

 

December 4, 2019 
 
 
 
Belton Fire Department 
420 Sparta Road 
Belton, TX  76513 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Thank you, Belton Fire Department for your interest in the MSA product line.   
 
This letter confirms that Casco Industries Inc is the sole authorized distributor of 
MSA SCBA and SCBA accessories for the Municipal Fire Service Market in the State 
of Texas.     
 
By way of background, in the fire service / first responder markets, MSA imposes 
specific requirements upon our distributors, which can result in a small number of 
distributors authorized to call upon a particular region. We impose these 
requirements because the equipment we manufacture and sell requires the 
involvement of partners with special knowledge, training and experience. 
Accordingly, MSA’s distributors are obligated to acquire and maintain extensive 
knowledge, training, and experience necessary to properly educate, assist and 
service our end user customers before, during and after the sale. MSA’s fire service / 
first responder distributor qualification requirements are likewise intended to ensure 
the highest possible end user customer experience.   
 
If you desire additional information about MSA, its product lines, or channel partners, 
please do not hesitate to contact me.  Thank you for your interest in our products. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Scott McGuire 
North American Sales Channels Specialist 
Phone: 724-742-8028 
Email: scott.mcguire@MSAsafety.com 
 

2
1
 
G
a
m
m
a



City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 1 of 1   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #9 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with Bell 
County Municipal Utility District No. 1 to provide solid waste collection services. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Background Information 
 
The Council recently authorized a new franchise agreement with Waste Management for 
residential solid waste services. In order to allow residents of Bell County Municipal Utility 
District #1 to participate in this new agreement, a new Interlocal Agreement with the MUD is 
needed. 
 
The Board of Directors of the MUD will consider the new agreement at their meeting on 
December 18, 2019, which will be recommended, according to MUD Attorney, John 
Bertram. The Waste Management contract is effective on January 1, 2020. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the interlocal agreement. 

Fiscal Impact 
 
None 
 
Attachments 
Proposed New Interlocal Agreement 



 
{W0933954.1}  

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 

 

Date: January 1, 2020 

 This Interlocal Cooperation Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into between the 
City of Belton, Texas (the “City”) and Bell County Municipal Utility District No. 1 (the “District”), 
pursuant to the provisions of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Texas Government Code § 791.001 
et seq.  

ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 

 The purpose of this Agreement is to provide solid waste and recycling collection services 
to all customers within the District through the City’s private service contract in effect as of this 
date of this Agreement (the “City’s Solid Waste Contract”) between the City and the contractor 
identified in the City’s Solid Waste Contract (the “City’s Solid Waste Contractor”).  The City and 
District believe that it is in the best interest of the public to improve the efficiency and 
effectiveness of governmental functions and services of local governments by authorizing this 
Agreement. 

During the term of this Agreement, the City shall: 

• Provide solid waste and recycling collection services to all customers within the 
District for the same in-City rates, in the same manner, on the same terms and 
conditions, and subject to the same regulations and ordinances, as amended, 
that the City provides solid waste and recycling collection services to customers 
located within the City limits; 

• Conduct billing and collection services for all customers within the District for 
solid waste and recycling collection services.  The City’s charges for solid waste 
and recycling collection services will be included on the City’s regular monthly 
water and wastewater bills to customers within the District; 

• Receive compensation from the City’s Solid Waste Contractor in the forms of a 
franchise fee and billing fee; 

• Take reasonable actions to ensure all sections of the City’s Solid Waste Contract 
are properly enforced on behalf of the District and customers within the District;  

• NOT grant a franchise for the use of right-of-ways to any other provider of solid 
waste collection within the boundaries of the District; and 



 
{W0933954.1}  

• NOT amend the City’s Solid Waste Contract in any material respect without the 
District’s prior written approval, which will not be unreasonably withheld. 

During the term of this Agreement, the District shall: 

• Upon request by the City, take reasonable actions to assist the City in enforcing 
the grant of exclusive franchise and polycart delivery; and 

• Acknowledge no compensation is anticipated from the City for the provision of 
solid waste and recycling collection services to customers within the District. 

ARTICLE II 
TERM OF AGREEMENT 

The term of this Agreement shall coincide with the term of the City’s Solid Waste 
Contract, which will remain in full force for a period ending December 31, 2024; and shall be 
extended for two additional one year terms provided the City and the City’s Solid Waste 
Contractor extend the City’s Solid Waste Contract for the two additional one year terms.  The 
City will not further extend the term of the City’s Solid Waste Contract without first notifying 
the District and giving the District an opportunity to opt out of further service to District 
customers.   

ARTICLE III 
MUTUAL WAIVERS 

Each party to this Agreement expressly waives all claims against each other for 
compensation for any loss, damage, personal injury, or death occurring as a consequence of the 
performance of this Agreement, not due to the negligence, fraud, breach of contract, or illegal 
conduct of the other party. 

ARTICLE IV 
NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITY 

It is expressly understood and agreed that under this Agreement neither party waives, 
nor shall be deemed to waive, any immunity or defense that would otherwise be available to it 
against claims arising in the exercise of governmental powers and functions.  

ARTICLE V  
VENUE  

Each party to this Agreement agrees that in any legal action brought hereunder, venue 
shall lie in Bell County, Texas.  



 
{W0933954.1}  

ARTICLE VI  
CHOICE OF LAW 

 The validity of this Agreement and of its terms and provisions, as well as the rights and 
duties of the parties, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.  

ARTICLE VII  
SEVERABILITY  

In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any 
reason be held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such fact shall not affect any 
other provision thereof and this Agreement shall be construed as if the stricken provision had 
never been contained herein.  

ARTICLE VIII  
MODIFICATION  

This Agreement may be amended or modified by the mutual agreement of both parties 
hereto in writing, such writing to be attached hereto and incorporated into this Agreement.  

ARTICLE IX  
ADMINISTRATION  

This Agreement shall be administered by the appropriate persons on behalf of City and 
District that each party shall see fit to perform such duties.  

ARTICLE X  
ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This Agreement, together with Section 4 of the First Amendment to Development and 
Consent to Creation of Bell County Municipal Utility District No. 1 and Development of the La 
Cachette Development between the City and the District, contains all commitments and 
obligations of the parties and represents the entire agreement of said parties with respect to 
the subject matter hereof.  No verbal or written conditions not contained herein shall have any 
force or effect to alter any term of this Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes the Interlocal 
Cooperation Agreement dated April 12, 2016 between the City and the District regarding solid 
waste and recycling collection services to customers within the District. 



 
{W0933954.1}  

ARTICLE XI 
TERMINATION/FORCE MAJEURE 

This Agreement will terminate upon the expiration of the Agreement’s term as indicated 
in Article II. This Agreement will also terminate if the City or the City’s Solid Waste Contractor 
terminate for cause the City’s Solid Waste Contract.  

Upon termination of the City’s Solid Waste Contract, the District the District may opt out 
of further solid waste and recycling collection services from the City. 

Neither the City nor the District shall be responsible for damages or expected to fulfill its 
obligations under this Agreement should an act of God or other unforeseen catastrophe occur 
and cause such damage or prevent the performance of such obligation. 

ARTICLE XII 
EXECUTION 

This Agreement shall be executed by the duly authorized official(s) of each party as 
expressed in the approving resolution or order of the governing body of such party.  

  



 
{W0933954.1}  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to these presents have executed this Agreement 
effective as of the date first above written.  

 
THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS       BELL COUNTY MUNICIPAL UITLITY DISTRICT NO. 1 
                 
Marion Grayson, Mayor          ,     

    Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
      
Amy Casey 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVE AS TO FORM 
      
John Messer 
Attorney for City of Belton 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of ____________, 2019, by 
Marion Grayson, Mayor of the City of Belton, Texas. 
 
           

Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of ____________, 2019, by 
_____________________, ___________________ of the Board of Directors of Bell County 
Municipal Utility District No. 1. 
 
           

Notary Public, State of Texas 



 
                                                                                                                       
 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 1 of 4   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
      Date:  December 10, 2019  

Case No.: P-19-35  
The Ridge at Belle Meadows,  
Phase I 

      Request: Final Plat 
Applicant: Travis Quicksall, Quick Inc. Land 

Surveying    
Owner:  Todd Scott - KDAVEO, LLC 

  
Agenda Item #10 
     
Consider a final plat of The Ridge at Belle Meadows Phase I, comprising 36.266 acres, located 
on the south side of W. Avenue O, between S. Loop 121 and Connell Street. 
 
Originating Department: Planning – Cheryl Maxwell, Director of Planning 
 
Current Zoning: Retail, Multi Family, and Single Family – 3 Districts 
 
Case Summary 
 
This plat combines the preliminary plats for City Lights Addition, approved in January 2019, 
and a portion of West Avenue O Addition, approved in September 2019. This phase includes 
36.266 acres and proposes 3 lots with frontage along W. Avenue O with one for retail use, one 
for an assisted living facility, and one for a senior duplex development with an amenity center. 
This development also proposes 41 residential lots for detached single family homes, and two 
tracts for drainage detention ponds. This plat of Phase I is generally consistent with the 
approved preliminary plats. A zoning change was approved in January 2019, for Multi Family 
District for the lots in the City Lights Addition preliminary plat boundary, and in September 2019, 
for the lots in the West Avenue O Addition preliminary plat boundary with Retail Zoning District 
along the W. Avenue O frontage, and Single Family-3 District for the residential lots along Laila 
Lane and the section of Southwest Parkway north of Laila Lane.  
 
Portions of the preliminary plat for West Avenue O Addition overlapped with the preliminary 
plat for City Lights Addition. Extensions of Southwest Parkway and Laila Lane were also part 
of the City Lights Addition and were not included as part of the preliminary plat of West Avenue 
O Addition. A condition of approval of the West Avenue O preliminary plat was that whichever 
development proceeds first with a final plat will be required to include these roadways and 
provide improvements as needed for access and circulation. The applicant initially presented 
both final plats concurrently, but he then resubmitted as one final plat incorporating both areas.  
 



 
                                                                                                                       
 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 2 of 4   
 

The alignment of Southwest Parkway was revised in January 2019 and is now off-set. With the 
preliminary plat review, Council suggested renaming the northern section of this roadway. The 
applicant is proposing to name it Belle Meadow Drive with this final plat. 
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
This plat includes approximately 36.266 acres and is proposed for mixed use with one retail 
lot, two multi-family lots, and 41 lots proposed for single family residential use. Below is a 
summary of the area requirements for the SF3, Multi Family, and Retail Zoning Districts that 
are assigned to this property. 
 
SF3 
• Front Yard:  25’ 
• Side Yard: 5’; 15’ from street ROW 
• Rear Yard: 20’ 
• Lot Area:  5,000 sq. ft. 
• Lot Width: 50’ 
• Lot Depth: 90’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
With regard to building setback lines in the SF3 lots, the applicant received approval with the 
preliminary plat to reduce the front yard setback from 25’ to 20’ for those lots that have less 
than 120’ depth. This is to accommodate proposed building plans that allow a larger back yard, 
and applies to 26 lots in Blocks 2 and 3 along Dowdy Drive. This reduction in the front yard 
setback is noted on the plat. A note is also provided on the plat that any garage designed to be 
entered from the side yard facing a public street shall have a minimum setback of 20’. This will 
ensure there is adequate room to park a vehicle in the driveway to provide the required 
minimum of 4 parking spaces on site, i.e. 2 in the garage and 2 in the driveway. The plat also 
prohibits access to collector streets when a lot has frontage on both a collector and local street, 
to limit the number of driveways and vehicles backing onto the collector street. Both of these 
provisions apply only to corner lots. 
 
Following is a summary of the subdivision ordinance requirements as they apply to this 
subdivision plat. 
 
Water: An existing 8” water line runs along the south side of West Avenue O. There is also an 
8” waterline stubbed out at the end of the existing termination of Laila. The applicant will be 
connecting these lines with an 8” water main that will be extended throughout this phase of the 

Multi Family 
• Front Yard:  25’ 
• Side Yard: 8/10’; 15’ from street ROW 
• Rear Yard: 20’ 
• Lot Area:  2,420 sq. ft.;18 du/acre 
• Lot Width: 80’ 
• Lot Depth: 120’ 
 Retail 

• Front Yard:  25’ 
• Side Yard: 25’ 
• Rear Yard: 20’ 
• Lot Area:  7,000 sq. ft. 
• Lot Width: 60’ 
• Lot Depth: n/a 
 



 
                                                                                                                       
 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 3 of 4   
 

subdivision and along the new sections of Belle Meadow Drive and Laila Lane. The 8” line 
satisfies minimum requirements for fire protection. 
 
Sewer: An existing 8” sewer line runs along Laila Lane, east of this property. The applicant will 
tie into this line and extend an 8” line throughout this phase of the subdivision and along the 
extension of Laila Lane westward.  
 
Streets: Extensions of Laila Lane westward and Belle Meadow Drive north of Laila 
Lane/Southwest Parkway south of Laila Lane, are proposed for this development. These 
streets are minor collectors on the city’s Thoroughfare Plan map. Both Laila Lane and Belle 
Meadow Drive/Southwest Parkway will be constructed with a 37’ pavement width with curb and 
gutter within a 70’ ROW. Dowdy Drive will be constructed as a local street with a 31’ pavement 
width with curb/gutter within a 50’ ROW. 
 
West Avenue O is a major collector street on the city’s Thoroughfare Plan map. Major collectors 
require a minimum ROW width of 80’. For Avenue O, there is currently approximately 155’ of 
ROW; no additional ROW is needed. Existing pavement width of Avenue O in this vicinity is 
approximately 42’; there is no curb/gutter but instead a bar-ditch drainage system. The City 
Public Works Director has determined that no perimeter street improvements are needed for 
Avenue O.  
 
Sidewalks: Per the city’s Subdivision Ordinance Section 503, a 5’ wide sidewalk is required 
along both sides of internal collector streets and the subdivision side of perimeter collector 
streets. Therefore, a 5’ wide sidewalk is required along both sides of Laila Lane and Belle 
Meadow Drive, and the south side of W. Avenue O. With the preliminary plat, the Planning 
Commission recommended a variance to this requirement; however, the City Council did not 
support a variance but required application of the sidewalk requirement as currently stated in 
the Subdivision Ordinance; therefore, it will be provided by the applicant. 
 
Drainage: Drainage plans and a drainage report have been provided and reviewed. On-site 
detention ponds are proposed to address drainage needs for the entire subdivision and will be 
privately owned and maintained. Two detention ponds are proposed with this phase, Tract A, 
consisting of 0.326 acre, and Tract B, consisting of 1.131 acres.  
 
Parkland Dedication/Fees: The parkland fee requirement per Subdivision Ordinance Section 
517 is $200 per residential unit or land dedication of 1 acre/100 dwelling units. When the 
preliminary plat for City Lights Addition was approved, the applicant proposed to satisfy this 
requirement by providing on site amenities for the 120 dwelling units proposed as senior 
duplexes. This proposal was approved by the City Council with a condition that a Certificate of 
Occupancy will not be issued for the duplex development until the amenities are in place, or 
the park fee ($24,000 for 120 duplex dwelling units) is paid and placed in an escrow account. 
The applicant’s proposal has not changed, other than to add additional amenities. The duplexes 
and amenities will be located on Block 1, Lot 2 (see attached site plan). The amenities will be 
privately owned and maintained and include a dog park, community garden, walking trail with 
gazebos, outdoor courtyard with grill stations and a firepit and an amenity center with indoor 
facilities to include a theater, billiards, library, and lounge/social area. The applicant has 



 
                                                                                                                       
 
 

City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 4 of 4   
 

estimated the value of these amenities to total over $300,000. Staff supports approval of the 
requested variance, with the conditions previously approved by the City Council. 
 
When the preliminary plat for West Avenue O Addition was approved, the applicant requested 
a variance to allow provision of land and on-site amenities to address the requirement for the 
single family lots. A decision on this requested variance was deferred to the final plat when a 
detailed plan would be provided and evaluated. The applicant now wishes to pay the fee for 
the single family lots in Phase I—41 lots total $8,200. These funds will be used to develop the 
city park near the Liberty Valley development, which is within a one-mile radius of this 
subdivision. 
 
Conclusion: We have reviewed the plat and find it acceptable as a final plat, subject to all 
items identified in the City’s letter of conditions to the applicant dated December 3, 2019. 

Recommendation 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met on November 19, 2019, and with a vote of 5-0-1 
(David Jarratt abstained from voting), recommended approval of the final plat of the Ridge at 
Belle Meadows Phase I, subject to the conditions below; staff concurs with their 
recommendation. 
 

1) Approval of reduction in front yard setback from 25’ to 20’ for single family lots in Blocks 
3 and 4. 

2) Approval of variance request for the parkland dedication/fee requirement for the duplex 
development on Block 1, Lot 2, to allow privately maintained amenities as described in 
the staff report, with the condition that a Certificate of Occupancy will not be issued for 
the duplex development until the amenities are in place, or the park fee ($24,000 for 120 
duplex dwelling units) is paid and placed in an escrow account. Park fee of $8,200 will 
be paid for the 41 single family units proposed in Phase I, due at time of plat signatures. 

3) All items addressed in City’s December 3, 2019 letter of conditions to the applicant. 
 

 
Attachments 
Final Plat Application 
Final Plat 
Location Map 
Variance request letter  
Duplex/Amenity Site Plan 
City letter of conditions to the applicant dated December 3, 2019 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 



















           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

       
 

 
 
December 3, 2019 
 
Project: THE RIDGE AT BELLE MEADOWS, PH I 
Applicant: KDAVEO, LLC. 
Date Submitted:  October 15, 2019 
2nd Review:        November 6, 2019 
3rd Review:        November 14, 2019 (plat only) 
4th Review:  November 21, 2019 
5th Review:  December 2, 2019 
Location:  36.266 ACRES AND WEST AVENUE O/HWY 190 

 
***Please comment back in red under the comments submitted on this sheet.*** 

**Development Review Committee (DRC) Determination of Plat Status: 
12/3/19 - NOT ADMINISTRATIVELY COMPLETE, BUT STAFF WILL RECOMMEND 

CONDITIONAL APPROVAL provided all comments below are addressed. 
 
PLANNING – Cheryl Maxwell – CMaxwell@BeltonTexas.gov: 
Staff recommends approval of the following variances, subject to City Council approval:   

1. Approval of reduction in front yard setback from 25’ to 20’ for single family lots in Blocks 3 and 
4. 

2. Approval of variance request for the parkland dedication/fee requirement for the duplex 
development on Block 1, Lot 2, to allow privately maintained amenities as described in the 
November 19, 2019 staff report, with the condition that a Certificate of Occupancy will not be 
issued for the duplex development until the amenities are in place, or the park fee ($24,000 for 
120 duplex dwelling units) is paid and placed in an escrow account. Park fee of $8,200 will be 
paid for the 41 single family units proposed in Phase I, due at time of plat signatures. 
 

PUBLIC WORKS/KPA – Angellia Points, APoints@BeltonTexas.gov:  
1. Plat 

a. The plat should not be recorded until the ROW dedication recording number has been 
added to the plat for Southwood Hills Lot 13 of Block 3.  

2. Plans 
a. Sheet C6.3 – The 45 degree bends (or at least likely one of them) on the 24” RCP needs 

to be junction boxes per Section 2.05 (Item 6) of the City of Belton Design Manual. 
b. Sheet C10.1 – The 30” RCP enters the junction where it changes to a 36” at the same 

flowline as the 36”.  The soffits should match elevation at this location, not the 
flowlines.  This is per Section 2.05 (Item 4) of the City of Belton Design Manual. 

3. Drainage Report 
a. The storm sewer calculation summary sheets still do not include Lines 20-22 that were 

added for the storm sewer segments called Utility Spur A and Utility Spur B in the 
plans.  It is noted that individual analysis sheets have been added for these lines. 

 

City of Belton 

 

 

  Planning Department 

mailto:CMaxwell@BeltonTexas.gov


           333 Water Street     P.O. Box 120    Belton, Texas 76513  Phone (254) 933-5812   Fax (254) 933-5822 
 

GIS – James Gibson, JGibson@BeltonTexas.gov: 
 No further comments.  
BUILDING OFFICIAL – Bruce Ebbert, BEbbert@BeltonTexas.gov: 
 No Comments. 
FIRE DEPT – Jeff Booker, JBooker@BeltonTexas.gov: 

No Further Comments.   
POLICE DEPT – Chief Gene Ellis, GEllis@BeltonTexas.gov: 

No Further Comments 
Outside Utility Provider Comments 

Oncor:  
AT&T:   
Atmos Energy:  
Charter Communications:  
Grande Communications:  
Spectrum (Time Warner):  
USPS:  
Clearwater UCD:  
TXDOT: 

  
Note: Acceptance by the City of Belton of a plat, zoning change, conceptual drawing, construction 
drawing, or other development submittal complying with City of Belton minimum standards for 
drainage does not provide approval beyond what the City may authorize.  Approval is limited, and 
this approval does not limit any obligations you may have under applicable state statutes, such as the 
Texas Water Code, or federal statutes.  You should consult with your own professionals as you 
continue to pursue this development project. 

mailto:GEllis@BeltonTexas.gov


1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, November 19, 2019 
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. in the Wright Room at the Harris Community 
Center. The following members were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Luke Potts, David Jarratt, Quinton 
Locklin, Ty Hendrick. Dave Covington, Allison Turner and Zach Krueger were absent. The following 
staff members were present: Director of Planning Cheryl Maxwell, Planning Clerk Laura Livingston, 
Planner Tina Moore, and IT Specialist Ryan Brown.  
 
6. P-19-35 Consider a final plat of The Ridge at Belle Meadows Phase I, comprising 36.266 acres, 

located on the south side of W. Avenue O, between S. Loop 121 and Connell Street. (Audio 
48:58) 

 
Ms. Maxwell presented the staff report (Exhibit C).  
 
Mr. Jarratt recused himself from the item due to familial relationship with the applicant.  
 
Mr. Potts made a motion to approved P-19-35. Ms. Turner seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved with 5 ayes, 0 nays and 1 abstention. 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #11 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract for the East Street Sidewalk 
project in conjunction with the Belton Economic Development Corporation, and any change 
orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the amount authorized under State law.  
     
Originating Department 
 
Public Works – Angellia Points, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
Summary Information 
 
On October 5, 2018, the City and the Belton Economic Development Corporation entered 
into a professional services contract with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates (KPA) to design the 
East Street Sidewalk project in downtown Belton between E Central and E 1st Ave. The 
project’s intent was to beautify N East Street by improving the sidewalks to ADA compliant. 
Also, the project modified the parking along N East Street to add ADA accessible spaces 
and to widen the travel lane on East Street for emergency vehicle access.  
 
KPA completed the design in October 2019. The project was advertised in November and 
bid on November 26, 2019.  
 
Two (2) bids were received for the project, as shown in the following table.  
 

 
Contractor 

 
Base Bid 

TTG Utilities, Gatesville $495,337.21 

Patin Construction, Taylor $645,549.21 

 
The Executive Director of the Economic Development Corporation, Director of Public 
Works/City Engineer, and KPA evaluated the bids received. After a review of the bids, KPA, 
BEDC, and Staff recommend proceeding with TTG Utilities’ bid. The BEDC Board of 
Directors met on December 3, 2019, allocated full funding for the project and concurs with 
the recommendation to award the project to TTG Utilities.  
 
The duration of construction for the entire project is estimated to be approximately seven 
months.  
 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The fiscal impact of this item is $495,337.21 plus any unforeseen change orders. The 
funding for the project is allocated by the Belton Economic Development Corporation.  
 
Amount: $495,337.21 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No  Belton Economic Development Corporation  
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with TTG Utilities for the construction of 
the East Street Sidewalks project, and any change orders associated with the contract, not 
to exceed the amount authorized under State law.  
 
Attachments 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation  
Bid Tabulation 
BEDC Memo  
 









Memo             
To:  BEDC Board 

From:  Cynthia Hernandez 

Date:  November 27, 2019 

Re: East Street sidewalk renovation  

On November 26, 2019, the bid opening was held at Belton City Hall for the East Street 
Sidewalk Renovation Project.  Five contractors participated in a pre-bid meeting held early 
this month and only two bids were received.   
 
The enclosed letter from KPA states that the low, successful Bidder is TTG Utilities of 
Gatesville in the amount of $495,337.21.  The bid received is $114,337.21 above what has 
been allocated for this project.   
 
In staff’s opinion, factors contributing to the cost increase include project add-ons from 
BEDC/COB throughout design and only two bids received due to the abundance of 
construction projects in the region and limited labor.   
 
Other costs associated with the project include contract administration and construction 
surveying for the project.  The total project cost is as follows: 
 

Construction $495,337.21  

Construction Admin. $24,500.00  

Construction Surveying $5,000.00  

Total Cost $524,837.21  
 
 
Currently, the BEDC Capital Fund has $275,366 in unallocated funds. If we proceed with 
the project as presented, the unallocated fund balance will be $131,528.79.   
 
At this time, the Board will need to discuss and consider awarding the contract for 
construction.  If the Board proceeds with construction, the contract will go before City 
Council in December for their consideration and approval as well. 
 
 

 



East Street Sidewalk Project
BID AWARD



Background
1. October 5, 2018 – KPA started design on East Street to beautify the street, ADA complaint 

sidewalks, widen travel lanes, modified parking. 

2. Multiple neighborhood meetings at Arusha’s to discuss project with the affected property 
owners. 

3. Atmos replaced the gas line with City (via plumber) installed service lines. 

4. October 2019 – Completed design. 

5. November 2019 – Advertised and bid. 









Bid Summary
The project was bid on November 26, 2019. 

Two (2) qualified bids were received. Funding for project: Belton Economic Development 
Corporation.

The project will be constructed in phases. The entire project is expected to take up to 7 months to 
complete. 

Contractor Base Bid

TTG Utilities, Gatesville $495,337.21

Patin Construction, Taylor $645,549.21



Recommendation
Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with TTG Utilities 
for the construction of the East Street Sidewalks project, and any 

change orders associated with the contract, not to exceed the 
amount authorized under State law. 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
 
Agenda Item #12 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance on first reading authorizing franchise 
agreements for commercial solid waste services with the following companies: 
 

A. Waste Connections 
B. Temple Iron & Metal 
C. Sunbright Disposal Services 
D. Eagle Disposal 
E. Waste Management 
F. Red Box Plus 

     
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Amy M. Casey, City Clerk  
 
Summary Information 
 
The companies listed above have current franchise agreements for commercial solid waste 
services that expire on January 26, 2020. Each has requested a new franchise. The last 
several agreements have had terms of five years and have had no issues or complaints. 
Staff is recommending a 10-year term as the terms of the franchise agreements rarely 
change. The rates charged by the franchisee are market driven and are not set by the City. 
 
In accordance with the City Charter, franchise ordinances require two readings and a public 
hearing. The second reading will be scheduled for the January 14, 2020, City Council 
meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The City receives 5% of the Company’s total gross receipts from customers as a franchise 
fee. FY2020 Budget for this franchise fee from all franchised contractors is $121,550. 
   
Recommendation 
 
Hold the public hearing and approve the ordinance on first reading.  
 
Attachments 
 
Proposed Franchise Ordinance 



1 
  

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-## 
 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A FRANCHISE TO ________________________ TO PROVIDE 
INDUSTRIAL/COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF 
BELTON; PROVIDING FOR THE SCOPE AND NATURE OF THE OPERATION; PROVIDING 
FOR THE DISPOSAL OF GARBAGE, SOLID WASTE AND REFUSE; PROVIDING A 
PROCEDURE FOR THE HANDLING OF COMPLAINTS; PROVIDING FOR A FRANCHISE 
FEE; REQUIRING INDEMNITY INSURANCE; PROVIDING FOR REVOCATION AND 
AMENDMENT; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT OF TAXES BY THE FRANCHISEE; 
PROHIBITING ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING OF THE FRANCHISE WITHOUT 
CONSENT; PROVIDING FOR FORFEITURE; AND MAKING OTHER PROVISIONS 
  
 

WHEREAS, ___________________________ (the “Company”), operates a solid waste 
and garbage collection service for municipalities; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Company seeks to provide containerized solid waste collection services 
for industrial and commercial customers within the City of Belton (the “City”); and  
 

WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the City and its citizens to offer the Company a solid 
waste collection franchise on such terms and conditions as will provide the City with the controls 
and options necessary to provide for the public good.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. Definitions. 
 

1.0 For the purposes of this ordinance, when not inconsistent with the context, words used 
in the present tense include the future tense, words in the plural include the singular, words in the 
singular include the plural, and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all genders whenever 
the sense requires. The words “shall” and “will” are mandatory and the word “may” is permissive. 
Words not defined in this Section 1 or otherwise in this ordinance shall be given their common 
and ordinary meaning. 
 

1.1 The following words, terms, phrases and their derivations shall, in this ordinance, have 
the meaning given in this section. 
 

1.1.1 “City Clerk” shall mean the City Clerk or City Secretary of the City. 
 

1.1.2 “City Manager” shall mean the City Manager or City Administrator of the City 
or his/her authorized designate. 

 
1.1.3 “City Council” or “Council” shall mean the governing body of the City. 
 
1.1.4 “Commercial Hand Collect Unit” shall mean a retail or light commercial type 

of business, which generates not more than one (1) cubic yard of solid waste per week. 
This type of customer is served pursuant to the City’s residential services contract. 



2 
  

 
1.1.5 “Containerized Commercial and Industrial Refuse and Waste” shall mean any 

refuse, rubbish, garbage or waste material that is not Hazardous Waste,  Residential 
Refuse, or a Commercial Hand Collect Unit. 

 
1.1.6 “Customer” shall mean any firm, person, entity, corporation or organization 

that contracts with the Company for the collection of Containerized Commercial and 
Industrial Refuse and Waste, whether such service is used by said firm, person, entity, 
corporation, organization or others. 

 
1.1.7 “Gross Receipts” shall mean the total amount collected by Company from any 

and all Customers for services rendered under authority of this Franchise. 
 
1.1.8 “Hazardous Waste” shall mean waste in any amount which is defined, 

characterized or designated as hazardous by the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency or appropriate State agency by or pursuant to Federal or State law, or waste in 
any amount which is regulated under Federal or State law. For purposes of this 
agreement, the term hazardous waste shall also include motor oil, gasoline, paint, paint 
cans and solvents. 

 
1.1.9 “Franchise” shall mean this Ordinance, and all the rights and obligations 

established herein. 
 

1.1.10 “Residential Refuse” shall mean all household and domestic garbage, trash 
and rubbish, excluding rubbish and used materials resulting from construction or 
remodeling work, generated by a person or persons dwelling in a Residential Unit. 

 
1.1.11 “Residential Unit” shall mean a dwelling unit designed for, or, in the normal 

course of use, occupied by, a person or a family, e.g. a single family house, duplex 
apartment unit or triplex apartment unit that is situated in a building having less than four 
such separate residential units. For the purposes of this Franchise, a “Residential Unit” 
shall not include any mobile home park, apartment building, condominium, nursing home, 
or similar residential, convalescent or multi-family dwelling, whether of single or multi-level 
construction, consisting of four or more dwelling units. 

 
1.1.12 “Street” or “Alley” shall mean all publicly dedicated or maintained streets, 

alleys, easements and rights-of-way, a portion of which is open to use by the public or 
vehicular travel. 

 
Section 2. Grant of Franchise. 
 

The City hereby grants the Company a non-exclusive license to use the public streets, 
alleys, roads and thoroughfares within the City for the purpose of operating and engaging in the 
business of collecting and disposing of Containerized Commercial and Industrial Refuse and 
Waste; including, but not limited to, contracting with Customers and providing service pursuant to 
contract therefore, placing and servicing containers, operating trucks, vehicles and trailers, and 
such other operations and activity as are customary and/or incidental to such business and 
service. 



3 
  

 
Section 3. Term. 
 

The term of this agreement shall be for a 10-year period beginning January 27, 2020, and 
ending on January 26, 2030. The Company shall begin performance under this Franchise within 
thirty (30) days from and after the effective date of this Franchise. 

 
Section 4. Scope and Nature of Operation.  
 

4.0 The Company may collect and deliver for disposal all Containerized Commercial and 
Industrial Refuse and Waste accumulated within the corporate limits of the City by the 
Company's Customers and the words “refuse”, “garbage”, “trash” and “waste” when used in this 
Franchise are used for convenience and, unless the context shows otherwise, refer to and are 
limited to Containerized Commercial and Industrial Refuse and Waste. The Company will furnish 
the personnel and equipment to collect refuse, provide the services described herein, and as 
contracted for with its Customers, in an efficient and businesslike manner.  

 
4.1 Service Provided - Company shall provide container, bin and other collection service 

for the collection of Containerized Commercial and Industrial Refuse and Waste according to the 
individual Customer agreements and applicable City regulations and shall make provision for the 
special collection of such refuse and waste upon request. The Company shall cause or require 
its equipment, containers and bins to be kept and maintained in a manner to not cause or create 
a threat to the public health and shall keep the same in a good state of repair.  
 

4.2 Collection Operation - (a) Save and except as provided in this Section, collection shall 
not start before 5:00 a.m. or continue after 7:00 p.m. at any location; provided that collections 
made in a manner that does not cause or result in loud noise, or that are made at a location 
which will not cause the disturbance of persons occupying the premises or neighboring property, 
may be made at any time. If the City receives complaints from customers, hours of operation will 
be subject to a mutually agreeable solution between the Company and the City. Other exceptions 
to collection hours shall be effected only upon the mutual agreement of the Customer and only 
when such exception will not result in the disturbance of occupants of the property served or of 
neighboring properties, or when the Company reasonably determines an exception necessary 
due to unusual circumstances. Subject to the ordinances and regulations adopted by the Council 
the frequency of collection shall be determined by each individual Customer agreement. 
 

4.2.1. Holidays - The Company shall observe such holidays as it, in its sole discretion, 
determines appropriate. 
 
Section 5. Vehicles to be Covered and Identified. 
 

All vehicles used by Company for the collection and transportation of refuse shall be 
covered at all times while loaded and in transit to prevent the blowing or scattering of refuse onto 
the public streets or properties adjacent thereto, and such vehicles shall be clearly marked with 
the Company’s name in letters not less than two (2) inches in height. 
 
Section 6. Regulation of Containers. 
 



4 
  

The Company may rent or lease containers to any Customer within the corporate limits of 
the City for refuse storage and collection purposes subject to the following requirements: 
 

(1) All containers shall be constructed and maintained according to good industry 
practice; 

 
(2) All containers shall be equipped with suitable covers to prevent blowing or 

scattering of refuse while being transported for disposal of their contents; 
 

(3) All containers, save and except those being used for the purpose of collecting and 
storing rubble, building and scrap construction materials, shall be equipped with 
covers suitable to prevent blowing or scattering of refuse and access to the 
container by animals while the container is at the site designated by the Customer; 

 
(4) All containers shall be periodically cleaned, maintained, serviced and kept in a 

reasonably good state of repair: to prevent the unreasonable accumulation of 
refuse residues; to avoid excessive odor and harborage for rodents and flies 
resulting from excessive residues remaining after collection of containers; and 

 
(5) All containers shall be clearly marked with Company’s name and telephone 

number in letters not less than two (2) inches in height. It is further understood and 
agreed that Company will lease or rent such containers at terms which are fair, 
reasonable and within the terms and rates authorized from time to time by the City 
Council. 

 
(6) All containers shall not be on public rights of way and shall be located so as to not 

interfere, block, obstruct or impede the normal use of any sidewalk, street, alley, 
driveway, or fire lane, or to block, obstruct or impede sight distance at street, road 
or alley intersections. 

 
Section 7. Disposal of Refuse.  
 
The Company will deliver all Containerized Commercial and Industrial Refuse and Waste 
collected by it within the City, except for materials which the Company may select for recovery 
and recycling, to such location as approved by the City Council for refuse disposal purposes. No 
other location may be used for the disposal of such refuse without the written approval and 
consent of City. Rules and regulations governing hours of operation and disposal practices at the 
disposal site, as may be published by the City, will be observed and followed by the Company 
while engaged in the disposal of refuse pursuant to this Franchise. 
 
 
 
 
Section 8. Franchise and Rental Fees. 
 



5 
  

8.1 Franchise Fee - The streets, rights-of-way, and public easements to be used by the 
Company in the operation of its business within the boundaries of the City as such boundaries 
now exist and exist from time to time during the term of this License, are valuable public 
properties acquired and maintained by the City at great expense to its taxpayers, and the City will 
incur costs to regulate and administer this Franchise. In consideration of such benefits, costs and 
expenses, the Company shall through the term of this Franchise pay to the City five percent (5%) 
 of the Company’s total gross receipts received from Customers pursuant to this Franchise 
(exclusive of Sales Tax).  
 

8.1.1 Fees Paid Quarterly - The license fee shall be payable quarterly to the City 
and delivered to the City Clerk or successor in function together with a statement 
indicating the derivation and calculation of such payment. Each such quarterly payment 
shall be due on the 15th day of the second month following the end of the quarterly period 
for which said payment is due and shall be based upon the Company’s gross receipts 
during that same quarterly period. The quarterly payments shall be due on February 15, 
May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year during the term hereof, with the 
February 15 payment being based upon the Company’s gross receipts during the 
calendar quarter ending the prior December  31 and being payment for the rights and 
privileges granted hereunder for said calendar quarter, the May 15 payment being based 
upon the Company’s gross receipts during the calendar quarter ending the prior March 31 
and being payment for the rights and privileges granted hereunder for said calendar 
quarter, the August 15 payment being based upon the Company’s gross receipts during 
the calendar quarter ending the prior June 30 and being payment for the rights and 
privileges granted hereunder for said calendar quarter, and the November 15 payment 
being based upon the Company’s gross receipts during the calendar quarter ending the 
prior September 30 and being payment for the rights and privileges granted hereunder for 
said calendar quarter. For purposes of verifying the amount of such fee, the books of the 
Company shall at all reasonable times be subject to inspection by the duly authorized 
representatives of the City. Additionally, the Company shall file annually with the City 
Clerk, no later than four (4) months after the end of the Company’s fiscal year, a 
statement of revenues. The annual statement shall have been reviewed and certified by 
an auditor or internal company controller to verify the accuracy of the report attributable to 
the operations of the Company within the City pursuant to this ordinance. This statement 
shall present, in a form prescribed or approved by the Council, a detailed breakdown of 
gross receipts.  

 
8.1.2 No Other Rental Fees - The license fee shall be in lieu of any and all other 

city-imposed rentals or compensation or franchise, license, privilege, instrument, 
occupation, excise or revenue taxes or fees and all other exactions or charges (except ad 
valorem property taxes, special assessments for local improvements, city sales tax, and 
such other charges for utility services imposed uniformly upon persons, firms or 
corporations then engaged in business within the City) or permits upon or relating to the 
business, revenue, franchise, installations and systems, fixtures, and other facilities of the 
Company and all other property of the Company and its activities, or any part thereof, in 
the City which relate to the operations of the Company pursuant to this Franchise; 
provided, that this shall not be construed to prevent the Company from being required to 
pay the City’s fees and charges in effect from time to time for dumping at the landfill. 

 



6 
  

8.1.3 Credit for Fees Paid - Should the City not have the legal power to agree that 
the payment of the foregoing sums of money shall be in lieu of licenses, fees, street or 
alley rentals or charges, easement or franchise taxes or charges aforesaid, then City 
agrees that it will apply so much of said sums of money paid as may be necessary to 
satisfy Company's obligations, if any, to pay any such licenses, charges, fees, rentals, 
easement or franchise taxes or charges. 

 
Section 9. Collection and Disposal Rates. 
 
 The rates charged by the Company for services provided pursuant to this Franchise shall 
be determined by contract with the Customer.  
 
Section 10. Compliance with Law.  
 

The Company shall conduct its operations under this Franchise in compliance with the 
material provisions of all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations, and with 
the general specifications contained in this Franchise.  

 
Section 11. Insurance Provided by Company. 
 

11.1 Minimum Coverage Requirements - The Company shall maintain throughout the term 
of the Franchise, property damage coverage, general liability insurance, and automobile liability 
insurance for any vehicles owned or operated by Company, with an insurance company licensed 
to do business in the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, insuring against claims for 
liability and damages for the benefit of the City. The insurance shall include the City as an 
additional insured. Property damage coverage insurance under this section shall be a minimum 
of Five Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($500,000). Automobile liability insurance under 
this section shall at a minimum have limits of Two Hundred Fifty Thousand and No/100 Dollars 
($250,000) for bodily injury for each person and Five Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars 
($500,000) for each occurrence, and property damage of Two Hundred Fifty Thousand and 
No/100 Dollars ($250,000) for each occurrence and general liability insurance under this section 
shall be a minimum of Five Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($500,000) for the protection 
of the public in connection with: 
 

11.1.1 Property Damage - Liability to persons or damages to property, in any way 
arising out of or through the acts or omissions of Company, its servants, agents or 
employees or to which Company’s negligence shall in any way contribute; 

 
11.1.2 Miscellaneous - Arising out of any claim or invasion of the right of privacy, 

for defamation of any person, firm or corporation, or the violation or infringement of any 
copyright, trademark, trade name, service mark or patent, or of any other right of any 
person, firm or corporation; 

 
11.1.3 Contractors - Arising out of Company’s operations and relationships with 

any independent contractor or subcontractor. 
11.2 Employer's Liability - The Company shall maintain throughout the term of the 

Franchise the requisite statutory workers' compensation insurance and a minimum of One 
Hundred Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($100,000) employer’s liability insurance. 



7 
  

 
 11.3 Approval of Policy - The insurance policy, or policies, obtained by the Company in 
compliance with this section shall be approved by the City Manager, and such insurance policy, 
along with written evidence of payment of required premiums, shall be filed and maintained with 
the City Clerk during the term of the Franchise, and shall be changed from time to time to reflect 
changing liability limits, as reasonably required by the Council. The Company shall immediately 
advise the Council of any significant litigation, actual or potential, that may develop and would 
affect this insurance. 
 

11.4 Endorsements - All insurance policies maintained pursuant to this Franchise shall 
contain the following conditions by endorsement: 
 

11.4.1 Additional Insured - The City shall be an additional insured and the term 
“owner” and “City” shall include all authorities, Boards, Bureaus, Commissions, Divisions, 
Departments and offices of the City and the individual members, officers, employees and 
agents thereof in their official capacities and/or while acting on behalf of the City; 

 
11.4.2 Cancellation Notice - Each policy shall require that thirty (30) days prior to a 

cancellation or material change in policies, a written notice thereof shall be delivered to 
the City Manager by registered mail; 

 
11.4.3 No City Liability - Insurers shall have no right of recovery against the City, it 

being the intention that the insurance policies shall protect the Company and the City and 
shall be primary coverage for all losses covered by the policies; 

 
11.4.4 Other Insurance Clause - The policy clause “Other Insurance” shall not 

apply to the City where the City is an insured on the policy; 
 

11.4.5 No Recourse - Companies issuing the insurance policies shall not have 
recourse against the City for payment of any premium or assessment. 

 
11.5 Increase Requirements - The City reserves the right to review the Insurance 

requirements of this section during the effective period of this Franchise and to make reasonable 
adjustments to the insurance coverages and their limits when deemed necessary and prudent by 
the City Manager based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, or the claims history of 
the industry as well as the licensee. 
 

The City shall be entitled, upon request, and without expense, to receive copies of the 
policies and all endorsements thereto and may make any reasonable requests for deletion or 
revision or modification of particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions. (Except 
where policy provisions are established by law or regulation binding upon either of the parties 
hereto or the underwriter on any of such policies) 
 

11.6 Certificate - If the City Manager determines that a certificate of insurance is 
acceptable evidence for insurance coverage, a copy of the endorsement required under the 11.3 
above shall be attached to the certificate of insurance. 
 
Section 12. Indemnification and Hold Harmless. 



8 
  

 
 The Company agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless the city, its agents, officers 
and employees, against and from any and all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm, 
corporation or other entity, arising from the Company's distribution system, or arising from any 
act of negligence of the Company, or any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees, and from and against all costs, counsel fees, expenses and liabilities incurred in or 
about any such claim or proceeding brought thereon, and from any and all claims arising from 
any breach or default on the part of the Company in the performance of any covenant or 
agreement on the part of the Company to be performed pursuant to the terms of this Franchise. 
The City shall promptly notify the Company of any claim or cause of action which may be 
asserted against the City relating to or covering any matter against which the Company has 
agreed, as set forth above, to indemnify, defend and save harmless the City. The Company 
reserves the right, but not the obligation, to employ such attorneys, expert witnesses and 
consultants as it deems necessary to defend against the claim or cause of action. The Company 
by and through the City Attorney, may be granted the right to take, in the event the Company and 
the City are Co-Defendants in a suit, upon express written approval of the City Attorney of the 
City, total or partial lead responsibility for the defense of any claim or cause of action. In the 
event that the City is in control, either totally or partially, of such defense, the Company shall pay 
all expenses incurred by the City in providing the defense. It is understood that it is not the 
intention of either the City or the Company to create any liability, right, or claim for the benefit of 
third parties and this Franchise is intended and shall be construed for the sole benefit of the City 
and the Company. 
 
Section 13. Forfeiture and Termination of Franchise. 
 

13.1 Material Breach - In addition to all other rights and powers retained by the City under 
this Franchise or otherwise, the City reserves the right to declare this Franchise forfeited and to 
terminate the Franchise and all rights and privileges of the Company hereunder in the event of a 
material breach of the terms and conditions hereof. A material breach by Company shall include, 
but shall not be limited to, the following: 
 

13.1.1 Fees - Failure to pay the fees set out in Section 8.0; 
 

13.1.2 Telephone Listing - Failure to keep and maintain a telephone listing and 
office or answering service that is available by telephone without long distance charge 
during regular business hours for service to the public, and which telephone or office 
shall, at minimum, provide and maintain the following services: 

 
(a) Coordinate and provide information concerning deposits, payments and accounts 

to Customers and prospective Customers; 
 

(b) Respond to Customer and prospective Customer questions and issues about 
billings, accounts, deposits and services; 

 
(c) Coordination with the City with respect to private sector and public works projects 

and issues related to or affecting to the Company’s operation; and 
 



9 
  

(d) Immediate response, upon request, to police, fire and other emergency situations 
in which the public health and safety requires action with respect to or assistance 
regarding Company’s property.  

 
13.1.3 Failure to Provide Services - Failure to materially provide the services 

provided for in this Franchise; 
 

13.1.4 Misrepresentation - Material misrepresentation of fact in the application for 
or negotiation of this Franchise; or 

 
13.1.5 Conviction - Conviction of any director, officer, employee, or agent of the 

Company of the offense of bribery or fraud connected with or resulting from the award of 
this Franchise. 

 
13.2 Operation Information - Material misrepresentation of fact knowingly made to the City 

with respect to or regarding Company’s operations, management, revenues, services or reports 
required pursuant to this Franchise. 
 

13.3 Economic Hardship - Company shall not be excused by mere economic hardship nor 
by misfeasance or malfeasance of its directors, officers or employees. 
 

13.4 Forfeiture and Proceedings - Any unwarranted and intentional neglect, failure or 
refusal of the Company to comply with any material provision of this Franchise within thirty (30) 
days after written notice from City setting forth the specific provision and noncompliance, said 
notice to be mailed to Company at its principal place of business by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, shall be deemed a breach of this Franchise, and the City Council, upon notice to 
Company and hearing, may, for good cause declare this Franchise forfeited and exclude 
Company from further use of the streets of the City under this Franchise, and the Company shall 
thereupon surrender all rights in and under this Franchise. 
 

13.4.1 Proceedings - In order for the City to declare a forfeiture pursuant to 
Sections 13.1, 13.4 or 13.4.3, the City shall make a written demand that the Company 
comply with any such provision, rule, order, or determination under or pursuant to this 
Franchise. If such violation by the Company continues for a period of thirty (30) days 
following such written demand without written proof that the corrective action has been 
taken or is being actively and expeditiously pursued, the Council may take under 
consideration the issue of termination of the Franchise. The City shall cause to be served 
upon Company, at least twenty (20) days prior to the date of such a Council meeting, a 
written notice of intent to request such termination and the time and place of the meeting. 
Notice shall be given of the meeting and issue which the Council is to consider. 

 
13.4.2 Hearing - The Council shall hear and consider the issue, hear any person 

interested therein, and shall determine whether or not any violation by the Company has 
occurred. 

 
13.4.3 Forfeiture - If the Council shall determine that the violation by the Company 

was the fault of Company and within its control, the Council may declare the Franchise 



10 
  

forfeited and terminated, or the Council may grant to Company a period of time for 
compliance. 

 
Section 14. Transfer, Sale or Conveyance by Company. 
 

The Company shall not transfer, assign, sell or convey this Franchise without the prior 
approval of the Council expressed by ordinance; provided that this section shall not apply to 
vehicles, replacements, maintenance, upgrades or modifications of equipment, machinery, 
containers and buildings by Company for the purpose of maintaining and continuing its operation 
within the City; and provided further that Company may, in its sole discretion and upon written 
notice to the City, transfer, assign, sell or convey this Franchise to a wholly owned subsidiary of 
the Company. 
 
Section 15. Foreclosure. 
 

Upon the foreclosure or other judicial sale of all or a substantial part of the assets and 
property of the Company used for and dedicated to providing service pursuant to this Franchise, 
the Company shall notify the City of such fact, and such notification shall be treated as a 
notification that a change in control of the Company has taken place and the provision of this 
Franchise governing the consent of the Council to such change in control of the Company shall 
apply. Upon the foreclosure or judicial sale, or the leasing of all or a substantial part, of the 
property and assets of the Company dedicated to and used for the purposes of providing service 
pursuant to this Franchise, without the prior approval of the Council, the Council may, upon 
hearing and notice, terminate this Franchise. 
 
Section 16. Receivership and Bankruptcy. 
 

16.1 Cancellation Option - The Council shall have the right to cancel this Franchise one 
hundred twenty (120) days after the appointment of a receiver or trustee to take over and 
conduct the business of the Company, whether in receivership, reorganization, bankruptcy, other 
action or proceeding, whether voluntary or involuntary, unless such receivership or trusteeship 
shall have been vacated prior to the expiration of said one hundred twenty (120) days, unless: 
 

16.1.1 Trustee Compliance - Within one hundred twenty (120) days after his 
election or appointment, such receiver or trustee shall have fully complied with all the 
provisions of this Franchise and remedied all defaults thereunder; or 

 
16.1.2 Trustee Agreement - Such receiver or trustee, within one hundred twenty 

(120) days, shall have executed an agreement, duly approved by the court having 
jurisdiction, whereby the receiver or trustee assumes and agrees to be bound by each 
and every provision of this Franchise granted to the Company. 

 
 
 
 
Section 17. Retention of City Police Powers.  
 



11 
  

The City retains and reserves all of its police powers and the rights, privileges, and 
immunities that it now has under the law to regulate, patrol and police the streets and public 
ways within the City, and the granting of this Franchise shall in no way interfere with the 
improvements to, or maintenance of, any street, alley or public way, and the rights of the City to 
use said streets, alleys and public ways. 

 
Section 18. Amendments of City Ordinances and Regulations.  
 

The City reserves the right and power, pursuant to its police power, after due notice to 
Company, to modify, amend, alter, change or eliminate any rules, and regulations of the City, 
and to impose such additional conditions, that are not inconsistent with the rights granted by this 
Franchise, upon the Company and all persons, firms or entities of the same class as the 
Company, as may be reasonably necessary in the discretion of the City Council to preserve and 
protect the public, health, safety and welfare and/or insure adequate service to the public.  
 
Section 19. Taxes.  
 

The Company shall promptly pay all lawful ad valorem taxes, levies and assessments, if 
any, that are imposed upon the Company. Absent an administrative or judicial challenge, or 
appeal, the failure to pay any such tax, levy or assessment shall be a breach of this Franchise. 
 
Section 20. Acceptance by Company.  
 

Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Franchise, the Company shall file with the 
City its acceptance of the terms and provisions of this Franchise. The acceptance shall be in 
writing on the Company’s letterhead and provide as follows: 
 

City of Belton 
ATTN:  City Clerk 
333 Water Street 

P.O. Box 120 
Belton, Texas 76513-0120 

 
______________________________________ (the “Company”), acting by and through the 
undersigned officer who is acting within his official capacity and authority, hereby accepts the 
Franchise to operate a commercial and industrial refuse and solid waste collection and disposal 
system within the City as said license is set forth and provided in Ordinance No. 2019-## (the 
“Ordinance”). The Company agrees to be bound and governed by each term, provision and 
condition of the Ordinance, to accept and to give the benefits provided by the Ordinance and to 
perform each service and duty set forth and provided for in the Ordinance in a businesslike and 
reasonable manner and in compliance with the Franchise. 

 
Section 21. Public Necessity. 
 

The Council hereby finds and declares that the public welfare, convenience and necessity 
require the service which is to be furnished by the Company. 
Section 22. Affirmative Action by Company. 
 



12 
  

22.1 Applicable Law - Company shall adhere to affirmative action practices within the City 
and Company shall adhere to all federal, state and local rules and laws pertaining to 
discrimination, equal employment and affirmative action. 
 

22.1.1 Equal Employment - Company shall provide equal employment opportunity 
to minorities, women and the disabled at all levels an in all phases of operation. In 
addition, the Company shall promulgate an affirmative action policy which shall cover, in 
addition to employment, training, purchasing, and the employment of subcontractors. 
Company shall establish affirmative action goals and timetables to achieve its affirmative 
action policies. These goals shall reflect the percentage of minorities, women and 
disabled within the City.  

 
22.1.2 Plan and Policy - Company shall at all times provide the City with a copy of 

its current affirmative action policy and its affirmative action goals and timetables. 
 

22.1.3 Compliance - Company shall make all reasonable efforts to comply with its 
affirmative action commitments. 

 
Section 23. Severability. 
 

If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, part or provision hereof shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional the same shall not affect the validity hereof as a whole or any part or 
provision other than the part or parts held invalid or unconstitutional.  
 
Section 24. Captions and Headings. 
 

The use of captions or headings for the various sections of this Ordinance are for 
convenience of parties only and do not reflect the intent of the parties. The rule of interpretation 
to resolve ambiguities in a contract against the party drafting such contract shall not apply to this 
Franchise. 
 
Section 25. No Suspension of Laws. 
 

All provisions of the ordinances of the City as now existing or as may be amended from 
time to time and all provisions of the statutes of the State of Texas applicable to general law 
cities shall be a part of this Franchise as fully as if the same had been expressly stated herein, 
and said City retains and may exercise all of the governmental and police powers and all other 
rights and powers not directly inconsistent with the terms, conditions and provisions of this 
Franchise. 
 
Section 26. Peaceful Enjoyment. 
 

From and after the effective date of this ordinance, the City and the Company shall be and 
are hereby authorized and entitled to act in reliance upon the terms, conditions and provisions of 
this Franchise and, subject thereto, the Company shall collect rates for service, operate and 
conduct its business and work within the City, and enjoy the benefits and privileges of this 
Franchise during the term hereof. 
 



13 
  

Section 27. Open Meetings. 
 

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance was 
passed was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting 
was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 
 
Section 28. Endorsements and Records. 
 

The City Clerk is directed to make endorsements as appropriate over her/his official hand 
and the seal of the City on the form provided at the conclusion of this Franchise, for the public 
record and convenience of the citizens, of the date upon which this Franchise is finally passed 
and adopted and, if the Company accepts the Franchise, the date of such acceptance. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on first reading, the 10th day of December, 2019. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on second and final reading the 14th day of January, 2020. 

CITY OF BELTON 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Marion Grayson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
John Messer, City Attorney 
 



14 
  

The foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Belton, Texas, on the 14th day of January, 2020, by a vote of ____ votes for the 
Ordinance and ____ votes against the Ordinance. 
 

 
____________________________________ 

Amy M. Casey 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________ accepted the foregoing Franchise by written 
instrument filed on the ______ day of _____________________, 20___. 
 
 

 
____________________________________ 

Amy M. Casey 
City Clerk 

 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #13 
 
Consider a response to Gated River One, LLC, regarding the City’s Right of First Refusal to 
purchase the northernmost 30 acres of the former Leon Valley Golf Course. 
   
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Summary Information 
 
Please see attached Council Agenda Item from May 8, 2018, when the City Council 
authorized purchase of approximately 85 acres of the former Leon Valley Golf Course for an 
addition to Heritage Park. One of the Terms and Conditions of the purchase provided the 
City with the Right of First Refusal, allowing the City “to purchase the remaining 55± acres 
for three years.” The property owner’s representative, Glenn Hodge, has presented a 
contract to purchase the northernmost 30 acres of the remaining acreage, at a purchase 
price of $1,000,000 ($33,333/acre). The City paid $25,000/acre. The 30 acre tract abuts the 
southern boundary of the Mystic River Subdivision that is undergoing development. Sale of 
this 30 acre parcel will leave an approximately 21.5 acre tract available for sale/ 
development, and it is being marketed at this time. 
 
The City’s purchase last year doubled the size of Heritage Park to almost 150 acres, and we 
are actively master planning its future development – a substantial Phase 1 is anticipated, 
with other phases to come in the future on available land. The grant for $750,000 was 
submitted to TxP&W on December 2, 2019, and we are hopeful about our chances. We will 
be notified of grant award in late Spring 2020, and that decision will guide immediate next 
steps of park development. 
 
Several factors suggest the City decline the owner’s offer for us to purchase the 
northernmost 30 acres. First, we believe the 85 acres acquisition last year, creating a 150 
acre Heritage Park site, will meet our needs for decades to come. Second, the 30 acres is 
separated physically from the City’s 150 acre Heritage Park site, making it difficult to justify 
the purchase, and we are not in a position to buy the entire 51.5 acres. Finally, the purchase 
price of $33,333/acre substantially exceeds the City’s purchase price of $25,000/acre. 
Therefore, we recommend the City decline to purchase the 30 acres. This does not preclude 
a future Council decision on the 21.5 acres, located between the 30 acre tract in this 
proposal and the 150 acre Heritage Park site. 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 10, 2019 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The owner’s representative has presented a contract for $1,000,000 for 30 acres, a cost of 
$33,333 per acre.  The City is required to match this price to exercise our right to purchase. 
 
Amount: $1,000,000 
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     Capital Project Funds 
 
Funding Source(s): Not recommended. 
   
Recommendation 
 
Recommend the Council decline the offer to purchase the 30 acre tract. 
 
Attachments 
May 8, 2018 Council Agenda Item on Purchase of 85 acres 
November 20, 2019 email from Glenn Hodge to Sam Listi outlining offer on 30 acres 
Aerial Photo showing 30/21.5 acre parcels north of 85 acre Heritage Park purchase 
Contract for 30 acre purchase 
Right of First Refusal Agreement dated May 30, 2018 
















































	City of Belton, Texas
	City Council Meeting Agenda
	Wright Room, Harris Community Center

	City Manager's Memo - 121019.pdf
	City of Belton, Texas
	City Council Meeting Agenda
	Wright Room, Harris Community Center


	#5 - Minutes - 112619.pdf
	Belton City Council Meeting

	#8B - Copy of Belton FD- revised quote- 3 Dec19- G1 SCBA - pritchard.pdf
	QUOTE_ORDER

	#11 - BEDC Memo - East Street Contract.pdf
	Memo
	From:  Cynthia Hernandez

	#11 - Presentation - East Street Bid Award.pdf
	East Street Sidewalk Project
	Background
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Bid Summary
	Recommendation

	#12 - 2019-## - Commercial Solid Waste Franchise - Template.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2019-##
	SECTION 1. Definitions.
	Section 2. Grant of Franchise.
	Section 3. Term.
	Section 4. Scope and Nature of Operation.
	Section 5. Vehicles to be Covered and Identified.
	Section 6. Regulation of Containers.
	Section 7. Disposal of Refuse.
	The Company will deliver all Containerized Commercial and Industrial Refuse and Waste collected by it within the City, except for materials which the Company may select for recovery and recycling, to such location as approved by the City Council for r...
	Section 8. Franchise and Rental Fees.
	Section 9. Collection and Disposal Rates.
	Section 10. Compliance with Law.
	Section 11. Insurance Provided by Company.
	Section 12. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.
	Section 13. Forfeiture and Termination of Franchise.
	Section 14. Transfer, Sale or Conveyance by Company.
	Section 15. Foreclosure.
	Section 16. Receivership and Bankruptcy.
	Section 17. Retention of City Police Powers.
	Section 18. Amendments of City Ordinances and Regulations.
	Section 19. Taxes.
	Section 20. Acceptance by Company.
	Section 21. Public Necessity.
	Section 22. Affirmative Action by Company.
	Section 23. Severability.
	Section 24. Captions and Headings.
	Section 25. No Suspension of Laws.
	Section 26. Peaceful Enjoyment.
	Section 27. Open Meetings.
	Section 28. Endorsements and Records.
	Marion Grayson, Mayor
	ATTEST:
	John Messer, City Attorney
	Amy M. Casey
	Amy M. Casey




